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Collaborative Efforts

1.   Q: If our project involves more than one organization, do you need a one-page overview
per organization or for all of them together?

A: You should submit a one-page overview for each organization.

2.   Q: Do you have any requirements for collaborative efforts?

A: The bidder must craft a collaboration that works for it.

3.   Q: In a collaborative effort do we submit a single budget?

A: There should be one overall budget for the project.  Within that budget, each partner’s
budgetary needs should be identified.

4.   Q: Do the collaborative efforts (#4, page 10 of the Specifications) refer to general
collaborative efforts undertaken with other groups or specifically to a joint proposal?

A: Collaborative efforts referred to in #4 on page 10 of the Specifications are those efforts in
which you are involved generally.  

5.   Q: Would a collaboration of more than one provider qualify for more than 50%?

A: Yes

6.   Q: With respect to collaborative efforts, are funds applicable to part-time employees,
i.e. if the dollar amount in the proposal is for a part-time position, is it acceptable?

A: Yes

Grant Money/Use of Funds

7.   Questions relating to the use of funds elicited the following clarification:

The RFP and what is meant by the provision of civil legal services should be interpreted broadly,
although fidelity to the provision of direct legal services is emphasized.  Enhancing salaries of
lawyers/others and expanding existing programs is acceptable as long as the increases are tied to a
project that provides direct legal services.
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8.   Q: Where is the money coming from?

A: It is a legislative appropriation.

9.   Q: Is it possible to be awarded less than the amount sought in a proposal?

A: Yes

10.  Q: Do you have a formula for distribution of the funds?

A: The funds will be awarded on a regional basis as set forth on page 1 of the RFP.  The
distribution of funds within any one region will depend on the number of grants awarded within
that region..

11.  Q: Can the funds be used to expand an existing program?

A:  Yes. The RFP and what is meant by the provision of civil legal services should be interpreted
broadly though fidelity to the provision of direct legal services is emphasized

Eligibility

12.  Q: Can a small organization who has not received money before respond to this RFP?

A: Yes.  The intent of this RFP is also to reach new organizations.

13.  Q: If you run programs in two different regions, do you have to apply separately in
each region?

A: Yes. 

14.  Q: Can we apply for a sub-region?

A: Yes, a sub-region proposal is equally eligible.

15.  Q:  Is a bidder limited to a single geographic area?

A: No



OCA/UCS-133    CIVIL LEGAL SERVICES    
   

PRE-BID CONFERENCE 
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 

Q&A #2 

3

16.  Q: If an organization provides transactional services to frontline providers, can it
apply?

A: Yes. The RFP and what is meant by the provision of civil legal services should be interpreted
broadly, although fidelity to the provision of direct legal services is emphasized.  The organization
providing the transactional services must be an eligible applicant as defined under Section II of the
RFP.  

17.  Q: If an organization provides CLE, technical assistance, training or support services 
to frontline providers, can it apply?

A:   Yes. The RFP and what is meant by the provision of civil legal services should be interpreted
broadly, although fidelity to the provision of direct legal services is emphasized.  The organization
providing the services must be an eligible applicant as defined under Section II of the RFP.  

18.  Q.  What is the client financial eligibility criteria?

A.  The client financial eligibility criteria is spelled out in the RFP.  See the first paragraph under
“Purpose of Grants” page 6 of the Specifications.

19.  Question on eligibility: 
A: The eligibility requirements are as spelled out in the RFP.  See “Eligibility Criteria” page 7 of
the Specifications.

Scope

20.  Q: Can we apply for general operating expenses or does the proposal have to be for a
specific project?

A: Yes, but the expenses must be tied to the provision of direct legal services. The RFP and what
is meant by the provision of civil legal services should be interpreted broadly, although fidelity to
the provision of direct legal services is emphasized. 
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21.  Q: Would you consider alternative proposals by applicants in the event that the
applicants are not awarded the full amount requested?

A:  Revisions to that which is originally proposed will be negotiated with prevailing bidders in the
event they are awarded less than the full amount requested. 

22.  Q: How many providers will receive awards per region?

A: It depends on the number of applications and awards granted.

23.  Q: What is the purpose of these awards?

A: Please see page 6 of the RFP under “Purpose of Grants”.

24.  Q: Can one organization submit different projects?

A: Yes

25.  Q: With respect to the scope of the RFP, is the RFP limited to representation in court?

A: The RFP covers general legal services, not just court-based legal services.  The RFP and what
is meant by the provision of civil legal services should be interpreted broadly, although fidelity to
the provision of direct legal services is emphasized.  

26.  Q.  Is representation at an administrative hearing covered by the RFP?

A.   Yes.

27.  Q.  Is this funding eligible to be used as a match?

A.   Yes.

RFP: formatting, etc.

28.  Q: Does the description of the funding sources (V(a)(6) on p. 9 of the RFP) have to fit
on the one-page overview?   (This Q&A modifies Q.21 of the original Q&A#1)

A: The description of the funding sources can be separate. 
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29.  Q: Does the 10-page proposal narrative include Appendix B?

A: No, the proposal narrative is separate from Appendix B.

30.  Q: Which pages of Attachment I do we need to submit?

A: Pages 3 and 4 only.

31.  Q: Where is Attachment III and what is it?

A: Attachment III - Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire - is a required component of all UCS
solicitations.  It is designed to assist the UCS in assessing whether a vendor is responsible prior to
entering into a contract.   Attachment III is available from the NYS Comptroller’s Office online at
www.osc.state.ny.us under Vendors, Vendor Responsibility, Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire
(below New Forms), and select the Not-for-Profit questionnaire.  Bidders are encouraged to
download the Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire from the OSC website or to fill it out online
and print it.  Bidders must either submit the paper questionnaire with their proposal or file the
questionnaire online via OSC VendRep System, and shall checkmark their choice on the
Document Enclosure Checklist.  For more information please refer to paragraph “Note to
Bidders”, #2. Attachment III - Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire, on page 4 of the Bid
Specifications. 

32.  Q: Do we need to deliver the proposal in person?

A: No, you may send the proposal by regular mail, FedEx, UPS service, other courier mail
service, or hand deliver delivery.  Whatever the shipping method, the proposal must be in Marie-
Claude Ceppi’s possession by 3:00 pm on October 29, 2007 or the proposal will be declared a
“late bid” and disqualified. 

33.  Q: What are references? Do you want a letter of support?

A: References should be individuals or entities that are knowledgeable about your organization’s
work and the services it provides.  See page 6 of the RFP for specific information that should be
submitted.  Do not submit any letters of support.

34.  Q: When filling out the budget sheets, do we put Overhead in “Other”?

A: Please fill out the form as required.
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35.  Questions about format, margins, fonts, single/double space:

A: There are no specific format requirements, but the document must be reasonably legible.  We
prefer a font size of 12, as well as single spacing and 1" margins.

36.  Q: What will be the contract dates?

A: The same as the service year: from 10/01/07 (retroactively) to 09/30/08.

37.  Q: Will the contract extend more than one year? Will it be renewed?

A: No, the UCS project is one year only.

38.  Q: When do you expect to make a decision?

A: As soon as possible.  However, it will depend on the volume of bid responses, the complexity
of the responses, the time it takes to conduct the bid analysis, and the approval process.

39.  Q: On page 10 of the Specifications, #5, what are you getting at?

A: It speaks for itself.

40.  Q: How many copies of the proposal do we need to submit?

A: One original bid response and six copies of the original.

41.  Q: Until when can we ask questions?

A: The pre-bid conference was the last opportunity to ask questions.

42.  Q: Who might be reviewing?

A: Representatives of both the Judiciary and the Executive Branch.

43.  Q: Are you looking for a specific type of performance criteria?

A: No
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44.  Q: Re the staff profiles: (Q. 9 on the Q&A#1)

A: Profiles need to convey the abilities of the staff dedicated to the proposed project. These
profiles should be general characterizations, not bios.  Profiles need to reflect organizational
capacity, in the State of New York only, not in other states.

45.  Q: Should the staff profiles be a summary on a separate page?

A: The staff profiles should be included in the one page overview of the applicant’s organization.

Miscellaneous

46.  Q: Do you have any expectations for demonstrating the need(s) for the proposed
project?

A: This depends on the bidder’s expertise in the area; use your discretion to show need.

47.  Q: If I find the provisions of the RFP too limiting, can I change them in writing?  Can I
send my comments to someone?

A: The RFP cannot be changed.   Comments that may relate to future RFPs may be sent to: Laura
Weigley Ross, Assistant Deputy Chief Administrator, Division of Administrative Service, Office
of Court Administration, 25 Beaver Street, 8th Floor, New York, New York 10004.

48.  Q: What does UCS envision in terms of data reporting and vouchering?  Any flat fee,
periodic payments, reimbursement?

A: There will be reasonable fiscal accountability.  There will be a final accounting but no
burdensome programmatic reporting of activities. Whether we will have a cost reimbursement
contract or a fee for service contract will be determined by the winning proposal, the service
provided and the time frame.  

49:  Re Q.11 on Q&A#1:   Is it correct that only one copy of the other applications is
required by part V(e)?

A: The applicant does not need to submit any copies of other applications.  The RFP has been
amended to delete paragraph V(e).  Applicants should not submit their IOLA or LSC
applications.  See Bid Specifications Amendment. 
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50.  Re Q.15 on Q&A#1:   Is Legislative and Administrative advocacy, as described in ABA
Standard 3.2, a service that can be funded through this RFP?

A: Yes, as long as the advocacy meets the purpose of the grants - to provide high-quality direct
legal services to indigent New Yorkers.  The RFP and what is meant by the provision of civil legal
services should be interpreted broadly, although fidelity to the provision of direct legal services is
emphasized.  

51.  Re Q. 23 on Q&A#1: Will you treat differently from other proposals those that include
direct legal services in matters where a right to counsel exists?

A. No. 

52. Are programs providing civil legal services relating to domestic violence eligible for
funding?

A.  Yes.


